
Administrative Offices 
4600 So. Weber River Drive 

Riverdale, Utah  84405 

 
 
 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Riverdale City Council held Tuesday, March 4, 2008 at 6:23 
p.m. at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber River Drive.      
 
Members Present: Bruce Burrows, Mayor  
   David Gibby, Councilor 

Shelly Jenkins, Councilor 
Don Hunt, Councilor 
Gary Griffiths, Councilor 
Doug Peterson, Councilor 

 
Others Present: Larry Hansen, Chief Administrative Officer; Steve Brooks, City Attorney; Randy 

Daily, Community Development Director; Lynn Moulding, Public Works Director; 
Doug Illum, Fire Chief; Dave Hansen, Police Chief; Jody Burnett, Legal Counsel, 
Marilyn Hansen, City Recorder; other city staff and 33 citizens. 

 
A. Welcome & Roll Call  
Mayor Burrows called the meeting to order and welcomed all those present.   
 
B.  Pledge of Allegiance 
Councilor Gibby offered the Pledge of Allegiance.  Mayor Burrows read a quote from Patrick Henry. 
 
C. Moment of Silence 
Mayor Burrow’s quote was followed by a Moment of Silence. 
 
D. Open Communications
Stacey Haws stated that he has been following some of the issues that he dealt with while on the Council 
and discussed that because of litigation, the Council is being asked to approve the final site plan for 
Wild Cat Storage based on Ogden City’s ordinances.  He read an excerpt from Judge Baldwin’s order.  
He discussed approving the easement for Wild Cat Storage.  Mr. Haws stated that he thinks that the City 
could negotiate with the developer to replace the proposed black chain link fence with a solid block wall 
that would be 7 to 8 feet high in return for granting the easement.   
 
Lu Ann Farr reported that she has questions about the City’s Emergency Preparedness Plan.  She 
discussed an article in the newspaper about Pleasant View’s Emergency Preparedness Plan and their 
CERT program.  She stated that she is concerned with Riverdale’s plan and wants know if the plan has 
been updated.  She recommended updating the City’s web-site and asked for commitments to get things 
rolling again in the CERT program.  Ms. Farr invited everyone to the Emergency Preparedness Fair on 
March 27, 2008 at the Riverdale Community Center from 5:00 to 8:00 p.m.  
 
Debbie Jarman inquired as to where she would go if there was an emergency.  Mayor Burrows stated 
that there would be maps provided at the Emergency Preparedness Fair on this matter.  Ms. Jarman 
inquired if there a plan for a skate park in the future.  Mayor Burrows replied that a skate park has been 

 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 1 March 4, 2008 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 2 March 4, 2008 

in the plans for the last 5 to 6 years, but that budget restrictions have stopped them from moving 
forward.   
 
Janet Ortgiesen reported that she has lived in the City for 6 years and has no clue where to go if she was 
asked to evacuate.  She inquired how new citizens would find out what to do.  She feels the City’s web-
site is useless and wants to get the information out to the citizens on what to do in case of an emergency.  
Ms. Ortgiesen discussed the CERT program.  She suggested spending some money on education and 
asked if evacuation information could be included in the newsletter.   
 
Amy Ann Spiers stated that she is a resident of River Glen and a real estate agent.  She read a prepared 
statement opposing the storage units.  She reported that Ogden City has a nine step process to approve 
projects and inquired that if we are to follow Ogden City’s guidelines and protocol why aren’t we doing 
that.  She implored the Council not to consider the final site plan without considering all things and 
reflect on what is the right thing to do.  She asked that they secure the wetland issue and stated that she 
believes they can reach a win-win for everyone involved if all the proper procedures are followed. 
 
Marty Reynolds stated that he is a resident of River Glen and a real estate agent and supports what Ms. 
Spiers said.  He reported that the storage units are to be built in accordance with Ogden City’s ordinance 
and understands that there isn’t an ordinance in Riverdale for storage units.  He feels that the current 
storage units in Riverdale don’t seem to be maintained very well and inquired if the City is going to do 
an ordinance for the upkeep and maintenance of these units.  He stated that there should be some 
consideration given for the easement.  Mr. Reynolds reported that every year the City is given a report 
from the auditor with the audit and no report is given from Legal Counsel on the cases that were lost and 
why they were lost. 
 
Randall Wilson reported that he has been following this item and now that there is a clear definition by a 
court, he has been in contact with Ogden City to find out the process they would make them go through.  
He stated that no site approval would be possible in Ogden City without some preliminary approvals 
from government agencies that would allow development in this area as they have a very definite 
system.  He reported that according to the rules and regulations that he has researched, this is an 
undevelopable piece of property as it doesn’t meet the clean water act.  He stated that he has been in 
touch with the Army Corps of Engineers and they have assured him it is wetlands and will be under their 
jurisdiction and will need to follow their regulations.  Mr. Wilson reported that he has also went to Earth 
Tek Engineering and has a letter from them that they haven’t had any geotek reports.  He asked the 
Council to follow these regulations astutely. 
 
Miranda Rizzi reported that her one concern is if they would be in this situation if it wasn’t Mr. 
Cummins who owned this land as he has been in the community for a long time.  She is concerned that 
there is a lot of personal interest from the Council and hopes that they will represent the community and 
the people who voted for them. 
 
Doug Spiers reported that he lives in the River Glen subdivision and is concerned about code 
enforcement for the storage units.  He stated that the code enforcement in River Glen is poor and that he 
is also concerned that the soil on the property could be contaminated by the 31st street dumping on that 
soil. 
 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 3 March 4, 2008 

E. Presentations and Reports   
1. Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Burrows reported that there will be an Emergency Preparedness Fair on March 27, 2008 at the 
Riverdale Community Center and that the Riverdale Substance Abuse Court graduation will be held on 
March 6 at 12:30 p.m. at the Civic Center.   
 

a. Recognition of Kathy Tanner as Outstanding Riverale Citizen and Planning Commissioner. 
Mayor Burrows recognized Kathy Tanner and read the proclamation to Ms. Tanner proclaiming her 
as Outstanding Riverdale Citizen.   

 
2. Presentation by Chuck Chappell of the Wasatch Front Regional Council 
Chuck Chappell gave a power point presentation outlining the Wasatch Front Regional Council’s goals 
and how they can help Riverdale. 
 
3. Recorder’s Report (Review status of Council requested follow-up items) 

None 
 

F. Consent Items 
1. Approval of meeting minutes from:  

February 19, 2008 Council Work Session 
February 19, 2008 Regular City Council 
February 23, 2008 Strategic Planning Work Session 
 

2. Set public hearing on March 18, 2008 to declare certain personal property as surplus. 
 
Motion: Councilor Hunt moved to approve the consent items and set the public hearing.  

Councilor Griffiths seconded the motion. 
Call the Question: 
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
G. Action Items 
1. Consideration of Final Site Plan for Wildcat Storage located at 3490 South Parker Drive. 

Jody Burnett gave an overview of this item.  He stated that the court ordered Riverdale to approve 
the storage units using Ogden City’s manufacturing zoning ordinances and not Ogden City’s 
processes.  He stated that he feels staff has done a great job in meshing those two processes together.  
He reported that Riverdale has applied the more restrictive ordinances for this project, with the 
cooperation of the applicant.  Randy Daily stated that he met with Ogden City planners and talked to 
them about their M-1 and M-2 zoning ordinances and that under Ogden’s zoning, the storage units 
are a permitted use.  He reported that Mr. Eilertson has agreed to greater landscaping ratios and 
greater setbacks than Ogden’s ordinances required in order to make this a better project.  Mr.  Daily 
discussed screening of the project and the pros and cons of putting up a block wall versus chain link 
fencing with barbed-wire on top.  He stated his concerns with crime and graffiti if a block wall is 
installed on the property.  He explained that the developer has agreed to go before the Design 
Review Committee to discuss colors and building materials.  He stated that the storage units will be 
10’ 6” high with the security house as the tallest structure.  Mr. Daily reported that the developer has 
submitted a geotek report and that the Army Corps of Engineers were contacted when the land was 
filled in.  He explained that based on state law, the City cannot designate a wetland without the 
Army Corps of Engineers and that Mr. Purin’s property, which is adjacent, has been designated as 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 4 March 4, 2008 

such.  He stated that the Planning Commission felt that the landscaping and setbacks were 
satisfactory to meet the requirements of our ordinance and have recommended approval.  He 
reported that staff has reviewed the plan and there has been a geotek study and a traffic study that 
has been reviewed.  He noted that a portion of the property is in the flood plain and indicated that the 
developer will have to elevate the property.   

 
Councilor Jenkins stated that when they were briefed on this case, they were told that Judge 
Baldwin’s order was for Riverdale to comply with Ogden City’s developments standards and that the 
standard speaks more to a process instead of the ordinance.  She inquired if Riverdale is to comply 
with the standards or the zone.  She reported that she has looked at both cities ordinances and hopes 
they can work through this project while looking at the citizens concerns.  Councilor Jenkins 
inquired if there would be RV storage available and if there is adequate space for a couple of 
vehicles with trailers in the driveway, to use the keypad to get in.  Ken Menlove, Project Engineer, 
replied that there are no RV storage units.  He reported that typically, the traffic count is 20 vehicles 
per day and even though it is not probable that it will happen, two to three cars could be in the 
driveway at the same time.  He explained that they are widening Parker Drive 16 feet, which would 
provide a shoulder if someone needed to pull in.  He stated that the entire frontage of the project is 
being widened 15 feet and that they are installing curb and gutter.  Mr. Daily reported that there is 
100 feet from the road to the gate.   

 
Councilor Jenkins stated that while she recognizes that graffiti is a problem, she likes the idea of a 
wall on the east side and sees it as a less approachable way to break into the project.  She reported 
that would allow the lighting to be on the interior and not on the outside and this would keep what 
happens in the storage units private.  She noted that if this project was in a compound arrangement it 
would help with security.  Mr. Daily replied that the proposed fence on the south side is chain link 
with barbed-wire and asked Councilor Jenkins if she is proposing a solid wall to screen the project.  
Councilor Jenkins suggested that if they moved the building to the property line, they wouldn’t have 
to build a fence.  Mr. Daily replied that a solid wall is a crime concern, as it provides a place for 
people to hide and prevents the police from seeing in, also if it is left open, the landscaping can be 
seen.  Larry Hansen stated that the fencing issue could be addressed through the Design Review 
Committee.  Councilor Jenkins stated that she feels it would be a part of a condition of approving the 
project and suggested something that screens this project in a more solid and secure way in order to 
avoid the black chain link fence with barbed-wire.  Police Chief, Dave Hansen, reported that if there 
is a block wall then they run the risk of graffiti.  He also stated that wall pack lighting would also be 
needed to discourage crime and the lights could glare at the residents.   

 
Councilor Peterson stated that the question is having a solid building on the south end, or the east 
end, or both as he wants to have a solid barrier between the houses and the storage units.  He 
reported that looking at the visibility issues, it would be better to have a barrier that you can see 
through on the east end.  Councilor Hunt inquired if Mr. Peterson is proposing moving the buildings 
off the property line.  Councilor Peterson replied yes and putting in a fence that can be seen through.  
He stated that his preference would be a solid building on the south end as a buffer and leaving the 
east end open.  He is recommending a wrought iron fence instead of the black chain link fence.  Mr. 
Daily stated that there will be landscaping on the south side that will mature and that the back wall 
will be sealed with a graffiti proof sealer and that the wall pack lights that will be screened so as to 
not bleed over on the adjacent property.  Mr. Menlove stated that they wouldn’t be opposed to 
installing a wrought iron fence.   

 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 5 March 4, 2008 

Mayor Burrows reported that they are looking at three fencing options, specifically on the south side 
facing the residential area: chain link, wrought iron, or a solid block wall.  Councilor Peterson stated 
that he is looking at a combination of a solid wall and open fencing, but prefers the solid wall on the 
south border and wrought iron fencing on the front and sides.  Mayor Burrows asked for 
consensus to require a solid block wall on the south side.  Consensus was not reached.  A 
discussion was held as to the allowable height of the wrought iron fence.  Mr. Daily stated that under 
the current ordinance a 7 foot fence is allowed in a rear yard.  Mayor Burrows asked for consensus 
for a 7 foot wrought iron fence on the south side.  Consensus was reached.  Councilor Jenkins 
asked if the vertical rods of the wrought iron fence could be close together.  Mayor Burrows stated 
that could be addressed by the Design Review Committee.  Councilor Jenkins stated that it would it 
be more congruent to use a wrought iron fence on the east wall, instead of masonry wall.  Mr. 
Menlove indicated that could be looked at.   

 
Councilor Peterson stated his concerns about the issue of the Army Corps of Engineers and 
requested a letter from them clarifying their position on this property.  Mr. Daily reported that he has 
talked to them that there has been some confusion between Mr. Purin’s property and Mr. Cummins.  
Mr. Menlove stated that when they do the Alta survey and the geotek reports, sometimes those 
things show up and it is the developers risk.  Councilor Peterson reported that he has reservations 
about voting on this without knowing if there is satisfactory approval from the Army Corps of 
Engineers.  Mayor Burrows stated that the vote could be conditional upon the approval.  Councilor 
Gibby stated that he doesn’t think it is a big issue to make the approval contingent upon the Army 
Corps of Engineers approval and charge Mr. Daily with responsibility to ensure that is done and then 
the developer would know what he needs to do.   

 
Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to approve the final site plan for Wildcat Storage located at 3490 

South Parker Drive, contingent upon approval from the Army Corps of Engineers and any 
other agency that would need to give approval for this project to proceed with the 
amendments discussed previously.  Councilor Griffiths seconded the motion. 

 
Councilor Jenkins inquired if it was appropriate to include an expiration date for the approval.  Mr. 
Burnett replied that 6 months to a year would be reasonable as it could take a while for the Army 
Corps of Engineers to act, but thinks a year would be standard for a final site plan approval.    

 
Amended Motion:  Councilor Gibby moved to amend the previous motion to include that the site 

plan will expire twelve months from the end of March, 2008.  Councilor Griffiths agreed. 
 

Councilor Jenkins inquired if a third party required changes to the site plan, could it go back through 
the process.  Mr. Daily replied that if it changes the building layout, parking, or landscaping, it would 
come back to the Planning Commission and then to the Council, but as far as engineering aspects, 
they can be handled by public works and engineering.   

 
Councilor Peterson reported that this has been one of the most difficult issues he has had to deal with 
in public service.  He stated that he appreciates the progress that was made but that he is not going to 
vote for this tonight, as the masonry wall on the south end was significant to him and the residents 
were disappointed not to have the solid barrier on the south end.  Councilor Jenkins reported that she 
feels the south wall was important and that the wrought iron fence is an improvement from the chain 
link, but feels the privacy issue goes beyond that and won’t be voting for it. 

 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 6 March 4, 2008 

Call the Question: 
Roll Call Vote:  Councilor Jenkins, No; Councilor Peterson, No; Councilor Griffiths, Yes; Councilor 
Hunt, Yes; Councilor Gibby, Yes.  The motion passed with three in favor and two opposed. 

 
2. Consideration of Resolution 2008-05 granting an easement for Wildcat Storage for Sewer and 

Storm Water. 
Lynn Moulding displayed a map of the property and the easement.  He explained that the easement 
is “V” shaped so as to not damage the trees and that depending on the response from the Division of 
Wildlife Resources (DWR) the sanitary sewer will be on the north side up to the existing manhole.  
He stated that the storm water will follow the alignment south of that, directly to the river.  Mayor 
Burrows inquired why a detention basin or filtering device is not being required prior to the water 
entering the river.  Mr. Moulding replied that when UDOT built the freeway, a storm drain was 
brought down onto the developers property and ended on the property.  He explained that none of 
the water from this development goes into this drainage system, but all comes from Parker Drive.  
Councilor Jenkins stated that given the completion of this site, even if it isn’t required, she would 
recommend that this water is filtered in a natural way before it goes into the river.  Mr. Moulding 
replied that when the City acquired the property there was Phase One Environmental Assessment 
done.  Councilor Jenkins inquired if this issue has been addressed since the property has been filled.  
Ken Menlove replied that they have a geotek report with five to six different borings where they 
bore down 30 feet in the ground and that the report shows no problems.  Mayor Burrows stated that 
they can look at how storm water is taken off the property during the design review process.  Mr. 
Daily reported that prior to building anything, the developer will have to do soil studies to ensure the 
soil can bear the weight.  Mayor Burrows stated that this easement is to handle UDOT’s function and 
predates this developer.   

 
Motion: Councilor Gibby moved to approve resolution 2008-05 authorizing execution of an 

easement agreement granting a storm water and sewer line easement on property owned 
by Riverdale City and located within the City of Riverdale, Utah; particularly describing 
said easement and the terms thereof; authorizing and directing the Mayor to execute and 
deliver on behalf of the City all documents necessary to complete this transaction with the 
Developer.  Councilor Hunt seconded the motion.   

 
Mayor Burrows suggested amending the motion to make the approval contingent upon DWR’s 
approval of this easement since they have the adjoining property there.  Mr. Burnett agreed as they 
will have to approve the easement as well.   

 
Amended Motion:  Councilor Gibby amended the motion to include that it is contingent upon 

approval of the Division of Wildlife Resources input.  Councilor Hunt agreed. 

Call the Question: 
Roll Call Vote:  Councilor Peterson, Yes; Councilor Griffiths, Yes; Councilor Hunt, Yes; 
Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor Jenkins, No.  The motion passed with four in favor and one 
opposed. 

 
3. Consideration of Resolution 2008-03 approving a Betterment Agreement between Riverale 

City and UDOT. 
Lynn Moulding reported that this is the Agreement with UDOT to upgrade the water and sewer lines 
during the widening of Riverdale Road.  He stated that the contract is necessary as UDOT will be 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 7 March 4, 2008 

doing the engineering and traffic control to install these betterments at no cost to the City.  Councilor 
Jenkins inquired as to the scope of the project.  Mr. Moulding replied that this contract covers the 
improvements for the west side from the viaduct to I-84.  

 
Motion: Councilor Peterson moved to approve Resolution 2008-03 approving a Betterment 

Agreement between Riverdale City and Utah Department of Transportation (UDOT).  
Councilor Jenkins seconded the motion. 

Call the Question: 
Roll Call Vote:  Councilor Griffiths, Yes; Councilor Hunt, Yes; Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor 
Jenkins, Yes; Councilor Peterson, Yes.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
4. Consideration of Resolution 2008-04 approving an agreement between Riverdale City and 

Weber Basin Water for 65 acre feet of water. 
Lynn Moulding reported that this agreement is to purchase 65 acre feet of water from Weber Basin 
Water, as the City ran over this year.  He stated that the Combe Farms subdivision and the west side 
of the City uses Weber Basin Water, while the rest of the City is on well water.  He explained that 
with new developments and the potential of the HAFB development he recommends contracting for 
the additional water.   

 
Motion: Councilor Peterson moved to approve Resolution 2008-04 approving an Agreement 

between the Weber Basin Water Conservancy District and Riverale City for the sale of 
the use of water.  Councilor Jenkins seconded the motion. 

 
Councilor Gibby inquired if the City is committed in perpetuity on that water.  Mr. Moulding replied 
yes.   
 
Call the Question: 
Roll Call Vote:  Councilor Hunt, Yes; Councilor Gibby, Yes; Councilor Jenkins, Yes; Councilor 
Peterson, Yes; Councilor Griffiths, Yes.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

5. Consideration of action from Closed Executive Session. 
No action was necessary. 
 

H. Discretionary Items 
Mayor Burrows reported that the ribbon cutting ceremony for Dollar Tree will be held on March 15, 
2008 at 9:00 a.m.  He stated that there will be a groundbreaking ceremony for the Riverdale Road 
widening project on March 11, 2008 at 11:00 a.m. at the Motel 6 parking lot.   
 
Councilor Peterson reminded everyone of the Utah League of Cities and Towns conference that will be 
held the 2nd week of April in St. George.   
 
Councilor Jenkins discussed the newspaper article about the Riverdale Elementary students and smoking 
in outdoor venues.  Mayor Burrows reported that he is still working with the Weber–Morgan Health 
Board on this issue and if they choose not to do anything, we will do our own consideration.   
 



 
Riverdale City Council Meeting 8 March 4, 2008 

I. Adjournment 
With no further business to come before the Council at this time, Councilor Gibby moved to adjourn the 
meeting.  Councilor Peterson seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  The meeting 
adjourned at approximately 9:15 p.m. 
 
Attest:       Approved:    March 18, 2008 
 
 
_____________________________                          _________________________________ 
Marilyn Hansen, City Recorder   Bruce Burrows, Mayor  

 


	B.  Pledge of Allegiance
	C. Moment of Silence
	D. Open Communications
	 E. Presentations and Reports  

